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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Dpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
("the Company”) which comprise the Balance Shect as at 314 March, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinton and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and Fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2022,
and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Srandards on Auditing
(545), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the wuditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
cection of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
cufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Wa draw attention to Note No. 45 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainties
and the impact of Covid-19 pandemic oi the Company’s operations, recoverability of recelvables
and other assets and management's evalualion of the future performance of the Company. In view
of the uncertaln economic environment, i definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent
periods is dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

imformation other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directlors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the Directors Report, but does not include the financial
ctatements and our auditor’s report theraon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of financial statements, our responsibility is o read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the above report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to the Board of Directors.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, as amended and Companies (Accounting Standard) Rule, 2021. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and
petimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Co mpany’s financlal reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:




= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
ohtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i] of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern hasis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
oxiste related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continug
as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii] to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.




1.

Other Matter

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021, have been audited by predecessor
auditor. The report of the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial statements dated 22
June, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion.

Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requircments

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2020 [“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure -A, which forms a part of this report, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration
is not applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3] of the Act, hased on our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(1) In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the Company 50
far, as appears from our examination of such hooks.

{c] The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(¢] On the basis of written representations received from the Directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31= March 2022 from
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refeér to our separate reporl in
“Annexure- B, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion en the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of clause (j) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in our opinion and to the
hest of our information and according to the explanation given to us:




i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at 31= March, 2022;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31= March, 2022;

jii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31= March, 202Z;

iv. a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed fund or share premium
or any other sources of kinds of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (" Intermediaries”), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries *) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries. Refer note 47(vi) to the financial
statements.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entity [ “Funding Parties”, with the understanding, whether recording in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall whether,directly or indirectlylend or invest in other
person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of Funding Parties
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; Refer note 47(vii) to the financial statements

¢}Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub-clause [a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed
final dividend for the vear.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, 000235N/N500089

3 Abhinav Khosla
Partner
Membership No.: 087010
UDIN: ZZ08T010AKQNOP7 243

Place: Noida
Dated: 9% June, 2022




ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 to “Report on Other legal and regulatory requirements” of the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
(“the Company”) on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2022)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financlal statements of the Company and taking into considerations in the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

{i){a){A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars Including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i}(a}(B] The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{i){t) Property, plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification. In our
apinion, the frequency of verification of the Property, plant and Equipment is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

{i)(c) There are no immovable property ( other than properties where the Company is leassee
and the lease agreement are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on paragraph 3(i}(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i)(d] The Company has not revalued it Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

{i)(e] There are no proceeding initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

{ii)(a] The Company dees not have any inventory. accordingly. the requirement to report on
paragraph 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(ii)(b) The Company has not heen sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs Five Crore in
agpregate from banks and financial institutions during at any point of time of the year on
the hasis of security of current assets. Accordingly. the requirement to report on
paragraph 3(if}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iif} During the year, the Company has provided guarantee and granted loans or advances In
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or any other parties. The Company has not made investments in nor
provided security to any other parties. With respect to such guarantee and loans and
advances:

(a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans, and hence the reporting on paragraph
3(iif) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




(k]

(c}

(d)

(e]

According to information and explanation given (o us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the guarantees provided and terms and
conditions of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company during
the year are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company's interest.

According to information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that in respect of loans and advances in the
nature of loans the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated. The repayment or receipts are regular except as mentioned below:

Nameof | Amount | Due Date Extent of Remarks
Entity Overdue delay If any
(Rs.in lacs) |
Refer 509,96 | Refer comment Refer Having regard to
Comiment mentioned in comment nature of [:.Dmpa nr‘g
mentioned remarks mentioned in

business and  the
volume of information
involved, it is not
practicable to provide
an itemised list of loans
where delinquencies in
the repayment of
principal and interest
_| have been identified.

in remarks column remarks
column column

The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of loans, as at the year-
end is as below:

Numberof | Principal Inte ' Total Remarks
Cases Amount Overdue Overdue If any
Overdue [Rsinlacs) | [Rs.inlacs)
(Rs.In lacs)
6174 | 425.51 |18 | 463.69 i

Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and
interest as stated in the applicable regulations and loan agreement.

According to information and explanation given to us, Company’s principal business is to
give loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on paragraph 3(iii)(e] of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.




(f)

(iv)

(vl

{vi)

(vii)(a)

(b)

(viiJ(c)

{wiii)

According to information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
paragraph 3(iii){f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not advanced
loans, made Investments in or provided guarantees or security to parties covered by
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(iv)
of the arder is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and no order in this
respect has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal
or the Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunals in regard to the
Company. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(v] of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
specified maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goomds and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanation given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

We are informed that the operations of the Company during the year did not give rise to
any dues for sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and any
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of accounts, in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on paragraph 3 (viii) of the order
is not applicable to the Company.

(ix){a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of lpans or other borrowings or interest

thereon to any lender during the year.




{ix)(b) According to information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

(ix)(c]) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has utilised the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for
which they were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application in
respect of term loans raised towards the end of the year.

(ix){d) The Company did not raise any funds en short term basis during the year hence, the
requirements to report on clause (ix)(d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix){e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on paragraph 3(ix){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix){I) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a] The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement to report
on paragraph 3(x][a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/fully
or partially or optionally convertible debenture during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on paragraph 3(x){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi}{a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
fraud on the Company hag been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)(b) No report under Sub section (12) of section 143 of Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
the auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors }
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xi){c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

[xii} The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore, the requirement to repert on paragraph 3(xii)(a).(b).{c) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
stalements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. Further, in our opinion, the

Company is not required to constitute audit committee under section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

(xiv] (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an Internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of the business.

(xiv] (b) We have considered, the reports of the Internal Auditor's to the year under audit.




[xv)

(xvil(a)

(evi) (b)

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and such registration has been obtained by the company.

The Company has not conducted any Non -Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

[xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(d) There is no core investment company as part of the group, hence the requirement to

report on clause (xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

[xvii}) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the

[xviil)

(xiv)

()

Immediately preceding financial year,

There has been resignation of the statutory auditor’s during the year and no issues,
phjections or concerns have been raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios disclosed In note no. 48 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial labilities, other information
accompanying the financial statement, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plan and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumption, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at date of balance sheet as and when they fall due with in a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not the
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
bascd on the facts up o the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
to Company. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(xx](a), (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.




(xxi) The provisions of paragraph 3(xxi) are not applicable to the Company as the Company is
not required to prepare consolidated financial statements as the Company does not have
any subsidiary, associate and joint venture.

For 5CV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ablirav-Gosta.

Abhinav Khosla
Place: Noida Pariner
Dated: 950 June, 2022 Membership No.: 087010

UDIN: 2Z087010AKQNOP7243



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) to "Report on Other legal and regulatory requirements” of the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
("the Company”), on the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2022)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sindhuja Microcredit
Private Limited (“the Company”), as of 31= March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIY). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial informatlon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, bath applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all matertal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frawd
ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
previde reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financlal statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls ever financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the pelicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31* March, 2022, based on the internal control aver financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the [CAL

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N /N500089

etk

Abhinav Khosla
Place: Noida Partner
Dated: 9% june, 2022 Membership No.: 087010

UDIN: 22087 010AKQNOP7243



Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
{Rs in Lakhs, unbess stated othanadss)

As al AS at
Mobes 41 March 2022 41 March Z0Z1
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 3,192.82 118282
Reserves and surplus 4 T283 TS B.a7T4.82
10,486.57 10.167.64
Hon-current liabilities
Long-term barrowings & 16,726,848 830078
Qinar Bg-berm kabilihes g 219 -
Lang-term provasions 7 B3.12 Trar
1681218 B, 3TE.TE
Current labilities
Shart-tam barowings 8 17,864 68 10.528.34
Trade: Payable g
{4 total outstanding dues of Micro entarprises and
Small Enterprises .

18} total cutstanding dues of creditoss other than TN 1687
mecro enterpnises and smell enterprises i
Dther current labiliisg i0 1,063 25 465 81
Short-term provishans 11 B AT 33585

19,568 65 11,349.67
Total 46 86741 i o7
Assols
Won-current assets
Proparty, plant and equipment and Intangibie assels
i) Propedty, plant and equipmeant 12 178,30 123.848
ii) Infangible assels 13 2.06 P
Diaferrad lax assels (net) 14 150.08 8307
Long-tarm loans and advances 15 1241395 4.928.85
Qher nan-current assets 16 BE, 87 4238
13,610.26 5.190.25
Cufroit asaels
Trada Recsivables 17 61.16 BA 3B
Cash and cash equivalents 181 5,601 85 855215
Diher bank balances 18.2 - 323.57
Shar-tarm loans and advances 10 26,025.48 17 A28.32
Dithar curent assets 20 478 65 343.30
32,257.15 24,T0B.T2
Total 46,867 41 29,896.07_
The accompanying netes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Thus i e Balance Sheat retemed toin our repert of even dale
For SCV & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chanered Accountans
Firm Registration No. G0023SMME0008E
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Abhinay Hhosla Abhisheka Kumar Malkit Singh Didyala
Fariner Managing Dreclor Whole Time Direcior
Mambership Mo, DET0I0 DIM : D2BTZ5T8 DIN ; OTRET488

Place. Noida
Cradis. 08 June 2022




Simnfhvuja Microcredil Private Limited
Statemend of Profit and Loss fer the year ended 31 March 2032
[ in Lakhs urless sipled olherwise)

For the year endod  For the year ended 11

Wistes 31 March 2022 March 2021

Ravgnue from aperations i 4243 87 413783
Cghir incomsg &2 11.53 852
Total Incomo &, 35540 4 14318
Expensas
Emoloyes banefis axpanse Z3 1,676.24 1,581.88
Finance costs 4 2 B89 38 2,000,561
Deprecialion and amorisalicn gepanses 25 4502 =34
Oiher expansas 26 1.202.95 554 64
Tl exppinses 5, 753,50 3,854 47
Frofit befers lax £51.81 JEREE
Tax BXpETSEs:

Cudrant fax 19689 128457

Dedesrgd fax cradil (67.02) (82 34)
Total tax expenses 142,87 66,63
Profil for the year Ja.e4 222.05
Eamings per equily share
[Mominal value per share & 10 (previows year: ¥ 10} G
Basic warnings per shats 203 1.42
[riuted earmings per share 112 a.az
[Mominal value per share P10 [pravicus vear $10H]
The accomparnying notes form an integral part of these financial aiatemants.
Thi i& the Stalemant of Profit and Loss refermed o in our répon of even date.
Far SCV & Co LLP Far and on behall of Board of Directors

Chanerad Accountants
Firm Regisiratian Mo, 0002 35NMS000845
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Abhisheka Kumar Malkii Singh DHedyala
Masaging Ciracion Whale Tire Ciractar

Mombarshep Mo OETO10 DOIM - O2E72578 DN : DTESTEES
(Qﬂ L
ankaj Kumar Bi
Company
Mambarship Mo, 1871
Placs Mokls Pimce: Moidla

Date: 08 June 2022 Diate: 09 Jume 2032




Sindhija Microcredit Prvade Limded
Canh Flow Suoment for the year ended 31 March 3022
|Res n Laking. unkess simind othersiza)

A} Cash fows from operating aciivilses
Profit bofore tax
Acustmenits 16 it ol BTl 1RE fo net casfiics
D Bcaalin AN BIFEYTISATON ENDENSES
Provzason ipwards oo oz
Preowetatn for empiayss banafils
[GosjiLoas on sobs of prograry, plant ard aqispmant
(Frvar eaUaapanin on Employes Siock Option Scherms (ES0F]}
Oparating profil bolare working capital change

Adfustments for changs in working capstal:
AT BChATCES

Crihar Curmen] iabiines

Cakh fows wsed in operating activities
Incoima baes pakd {red ol redunds)

Mot cash used in operating ectlivitees (&)

By Cauh flows Bram investing activities

Far thi year arsdod

31 March 2022 31 March 20621
451 B1 28868
45 03 34,34
5185 JIEES
2112 1794
028 .
- _(38T]
T&0.08 SB2.85
7,455 00y 2085
[B.475.98) [T 08053
T.22 .
(T30, 18) 41T
40 38) {134
EFELTY {32357
218 {1.51)
11 31) =
AG.41 4503
116, 044.25) 16 F15017)

!mmat 4__]_1&}1
[ Sk (5444 25}

Furchase ol propesty, plant and sguigenant {100.54) {3338}
Procoeds hons sala of peopanty, piart and squepmen? - .
b i dual funds & -
Procoeds from sale of peopecty, plan Bnd scupmsn 0.00 =
Hat cash jused in) generated (rom Ivvesiing activites (B) {100.81] (32.25)
] Gash lRow froen Enancing activities

Procescs ioem s of compulsory corvertiols prefenencs snates = & 50000
finciudineg premmium)
Shire dSUE BEpENSE CN i55uE of equity and compulasty convtihe - (210, 70y
prelnterss shargs
Pt i long term bormovengs 23,854.81 13606 50
Rapayren al kang term bor owings (11, 739°37) B 135 46
et cash genarated from finansing sctivities (C) 12,115.24 11, 763.65
Met incroase Ndecressa) in cash nsd cash squivalents. (&« B = C) " (4,250, 29 _  Saesar
Cagh and cash aguivalanls at tha begemeg al ke yea [ = 1,255 08
Cash and cash equivalasis &l tho ond of the year E1£ y_sus
Hate:
Caih md csh aganalent comoese of following (neder nola 18}
Cakh and cash sguivalents
Halancag with hanks
- 1 Gt ecpunks 1.280.0F FEFaL)
- i SED0E RICOUNS 4 38500 6,267 00
Cagh on hand 13679 T2

Thus 15 Cosh Flow Stabsennt rgdpmad 1o in our neport of envan date

For and on bohal of Baard of Direclors

For SCV & Co LLP

Chamsed ABoimants

Firr Foagsiranon Mo, D00FMENME00085 = X

bliay Clieih.
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Whicke Tene Dhrecior
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Smndhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
iHs n Lakhs, unless stated othenwvise)

1
141

1.02

o1

2.02

2.03

General Informatian

Background and corporate information

Sindhuia Microcredit Private Limited ("the Company”) is a Private Limited Company and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) and having its registered office at MNoida Uitar Pradesh, India. The Company 5 a non-deposd
sccapting Mon-Banking Financial Company (NBFC -ND') and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro Fiance
Institution {NEFC-MFI) with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") on 11th September 2016. The Company s engaged prmarily in
providing micro finance services Io women in the rural and semi-rural areas of India who are enrolled as members and organized
as Joint Labdity Groups {(JLG.

Uso of estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with ihe Generally Accepled Accounting Principles in India and requires the
management to make judgements, eslimates and assumptions that affect the reponed amounts of revenue, expanses, assels and
liabifities inchuding contrgent liabilties &l the end of the reporting peried. The Management believes that the estmales used o
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. The aclual results could differ fram these estimatas and i
differences bebween the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the years in which the results are known / matenalise
and their effects disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policles

Basia of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis undes historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAF) in Irclia and the applicable accounting
slandards specified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
{2 amended) and Companies (Accounting Standard) Amendmant Rule, 2021 other accounting proncuncements of the Instuie of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI%, relevant provision of the Companiss Act. 2013 as applicable and the guideines =sued by
the Reserve Bank of India ("REI). Accounting policies have been congisiently appled excepl where a newly issued accounting
standard or a guideling is inftially adopted or a revision to the existing accounting sfandard requires a change in the accounting
poliey hithero in use. The managament evaluates all recently isswed or révised accounting standards on an ongoing basis.

An assel of liability s respectively classified as current when it is expected 1o be realized or settied n the company's normal
operating cycle or within 12 months after the reporting date. Current assets and liabdlities include the current partion of nof-cuienl
assets and non-curent liabiliies respectively. All other assets and fiabilities are classified as non-current as required by Schedule
I of the Companies Act, 2013
Proporty, plant and equipment
| Tangible assets: Tangible assels are carried al cost less accumulaled depreciation, if any. The cost of a tangible assal
comgises iis purchase price, incleding any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsaquently recaverable from thi
taxing authorities), and any directly atiributable expenditure on making the assel ready for its intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in anmiving at the purchase price.
Subsequen! expendilure related 1o an item of property, plant and equipment is added 1o its book value only i it ncreases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All sther expenses on existing
property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period dunng which such expenses ara incurmed.
Gans or insses ansing on disposal of proparty, plant and equipment are maasured as the difference batessan the net asposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and are recognized in (he stalement of profit and loss when the asset s
daracognized.
Capital work in progress:
Capital work in progress are carmied a1 cosl, comprsing drect cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid 1o acqurs
propery, plant and equipment. Assets which are not ready to inlended use are aiso shown undes capital work in progress

i) Intangible assets: Intangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition less amortisation. Subsequent expenditure is capdabsed
oy when it increases the fulure ecoriomic benefits from the specific asset to which il relates. Assets which are nol ready for
thair intended use are shown as intangible assets under development which comprises of all directly atirbutable costs
recessary bo create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the mannier intended by managemeant

Depreciation and amortisation _
i Deprecation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method over the usetul lives of assels prescribed under

Part 'C' of Sehedule 1| of the Companias Acl, 2013

Esti lwes

Block of Assets Rl mr?:'“m}
Wfehacle B
Electrical equipmeants 10
CHEEE EopuspimeEnt i}

Furndure and filtings 10 |

[ a1




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(R& in Lakhs, unlass stated othensiasa)

2.04

2.05

2.06

2.07

Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date on which the assel is ready for use till the date the asset is sold or
disposed. Losses ariging from retirement or gains or logses arising from disposal of fived assets are recognized in (b
statemant of profit and loss.
The estimated weaful life of the assets is reviewad at the end of each financial year and the amorisation and deprecaalion
method are revised, il necessary.
il Inlangible assets are amodired ower thelr estimaled usefud lives from the date they arg available for use based on the
expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the assel, InMangible asset is being amortised over a period of 3
Gars,
i Innsﬂ‘mld improvements are deprecliated over the lease lerm.
Impairment of angible and intangible assels
The Company asses al each balance sheet date whether thers is any indication of impairment based on internaliexternal factors. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the assel. If such recoverable amownt of the assed or
cash genarating unit to which assel belongs i leas than its carmying amount, the carrying amaunt s reduced 1o its recovarablo
ameunt and the reduction is freated as impalement loss and is recognized in its Statameant of Profit and Loss. If at the balance
sheel date, there i an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount s
reassassed and the assed is reflected at the recoverable amount subject 1o maximum of deéprecialed historical cost.

Investmants
Invesimends thal are readily realisabie and are intended 1o be held for nol mone than ons year from the dale on wiach lhese

invastmants are made, are classhied as current investments. AR other investmants are classified as long-lerm investments.
Long-term nvestiments are carried individually a1 cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such
investmants. Current investmends ane casried at lower of cost or fair value.

Portfolio Loans

Parifalia loans have been classifed as “short tarm oans and advances’ and 'long-term nans and advances’ acconding o their
tenure

Rovenue recognition

Revenue |s recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Company and the revenuee can be
riliably measuned,

a) Inerest income on loans is recognized on accrual basis except in the case of non-performing asseis where it is recognized
upaon realization and any swch income recognized before the asset became non-performing and remaining unrealized s
revErsed,

by Imerest incame on fiked deposits with bank is recognized on a lime proportion accrual basis taking info account e amount
outstanding and the interest rate applicable,

¢l Processing fee collected on loans disbarsed anme recognized al the inception of the loan

d) Income from business correspondend is recognised as and when the services are rendered as per agreed tarms and
conditions of the contract

g Dividend incane is fecognised af the ima whan the right to receive the dividend ks established.

fi &1 other income is recognized on an accrual basis, whaen there is no uncertainty as to its ultimate realization/coll@clon.

.08 Asset classification and provisioning norms

al Asseis classification
Loans to Customers are classified as Standard and Non-performing assets, based on the criteria laid down bl

Standard asset - )
The asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or payment of interest is parcaived and which does not
disclese any problem nor carry more than normal risk atiached to the business;
Mon-performing asset
An assel for which, milerestprincipal peyment has remained overdue for a period of 90 days or more.

b} Provisioning norms
Prowvisioning norms for MFI loan portfolio:
The total provision for Ioan portfolio to be higher of

iy 1% of the outstanding iban portfolio or

or
{5y 50% of the aggregate boan instalments which are overdue for more than 80 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the

aggregale loan instalments which are overdue for 180 days or more

Apart from the above, the Company also creates addiional provision on overdue managed portfolio. if the overdue petiod
gxceeds 90 days uplo 180 days, then the provision of 50% of overdue amount is recognised and if overdue pariod exceeds
180 days, then, 100% provision on overdue managed portfolio is recognised,




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year endid 31 March 2022
i7a in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

2405 Borrowing Cosls

Barrowing cost, which are direclly attributable to the acquission jconstruction of fixed assets, til fhe time such assets ang ready
fos intended use, are capitalised,

Borrowing cost consists of interest and ather cost that the Company incurred in conneclion with Domowing of funds, Other
ancillary borrowing cosls incurmed in connection with obtaining loan are amortised over the pericd of loan. All athes borrowing
costs are expensed in the perod they are incurred, In case any loan is prepaidicancelled then the unamortisad ponion e such
borrowing cost is charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year such loan is prepaid / cancelied.

2,10 Forgign currency transactions and translations

Initil n
Transactions in foreign currency entered into by the Company are accounted a1 the exchange rales prevasing on the date of thi
transaction,
Conyersion
Foreign curmency monetary lems of the Company, eulstanding at the balance sheel date are restated al the year-gnd rates. Mon-
monetary items of the Company are carried at historical cost

G iff
Exchange differénces afsing on setlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary assels and liabditios of the Company ai
rales different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year of reported in previous financial stalements. are
recognized as income or expensa in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Frsward exchange confracts entered inlo to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing assel/ liability.
Tiwe preminsm or discount arising at the inceplion of forward exchange contract is amortized and recognized as an BXPENSE! iNCome
over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period
i which the exchangs rales change. Any profit or 05 ansing on cancellation of renewal of such fopward exchange confract is also
recognized 8% NCOME O a5 expanse for the peniod.

Provisions and contingent liabilities ! assels

Frovision

# provision s recognized when the Company has a present oblgation as a result of past avenis and i is probabile thal there will be
an outfiow of resources to seftie the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (exchuding
ratirament benefits) are not discounted 1o their present value and are determined based on the best estimale required to seitls the
obligation &t the balance sheet date These are reviewed al each balance shee! date and adjusted to reflect the currenl best
eshimales

Further the Company being a NEFC-MF| aiso complies with the guidefines ssued by the Reserve Bank of India regarding the
NArUS provisoning nomms.

Contingent liabdiity

A Contingent liablity is a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the oCcurmence or non-
socurence of one of more uncerain fulure events beyond the control of the Company o a present obligation that may, but
protably will not, require an outflow of rescurces, of a present oblgation whosé amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent
liabddias do ned warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Confingant assais

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial staternents.

212 Emplayvees banefits

ia} Short term benefits
Shiod! term benefits including salanes, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual lpave) where the absences
are expecied 1o ooour within bwetve manths after the end of the periad in which the employess render the related sendes, profil
sharng and bonuses payable within twehve months after the end of the perod in which the employees render the refaled
services and non-manatary benefits for curment employeas are estimated and measured on an unddiscounted basis.

(b Defined contribution plan
Company's contributions to Providen Fund, Pension Fund and Employee State insurance Scheme are charged as expense
based on the amount of contribution reguired o be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

(¢} Defined banefit pktan
Liabilifies for gratuity, are determined by actuarial valuation on Projected Uinit Credit Mathod made al the erd of sach Balance
Sheet date and provision for liabilites pending remittance to the fund is carmied in the Balance Sheet




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Fs in Lakhs, unbess stalad ofhersise)

{d] Larng term employes benefits

Compensaled absences which are not expected to occur within 12 months after the end of peniod in which he employee
randered the related senvices are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out 3t the end of the financial period using
prosmctipd unit Cradit Method. Past services cost is recognized immediately 1o the extent that the bensfits are alrgady used and
olharwise is amonized on siraight kne base over the average period until the benefits become vested The rebrement bzl
abEgation recognized in the balance sheel represents the present value of the defined benefits obligation as adjusted for
unrecoghized past service cosl. as redeemed by the fair value of scheme assets.

Actuartal gains / losses are immediately taken 1o the statement of profit and loss and ane not dafarred,

{g} Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (refer note 29)

The Employees Stock Option Scheme (the Scheme) provides for grant of the equity shares of the Company to employess
The scheme provides that employees are granted an option to subscribe to the equity shases of the Company that vesl i a
graded manner. The options may be exercised with in the specified penod. The Company follows the intnnsss vasue method as
par the Guidance note on Accounting for Share-based paymants issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for
accounting for stock based employes compensation plans. The expense of credil recognized in the statement of profil and
loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that penod. The
compensation expense i amortised over the vesting period of the oplions. The fair value of options fior disclosure purposes is
measuned on the basis of a fair valuation specified by an Independent valuer in respect of the stock opticns granted.

2.13 Segment reporting
The Company identifies primary segment based on the dominant source, nature of risks and retums and the internal
organization and management structura. The operating segments are the segments for which separale financial infarmation is
available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive management in deciding how
o allocsis resturces and in assessing parfofmance.
The accountng policies adopted for segment reporting are lne with the accounting policles of the Company. Segment
revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabdties have been identified 0 segments on the basis of thee
relationehip with the operating activites of the segmant,
214 Ta=zes on Income

{a) Current-tax
Curren tax is the amownt of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the provisions of the Incoma Tax Act, 1861,

{b) Excessishor provision of income tax relating 1o earier years is dischosed separatety in the aceounts.

ic) Deferred tay
Deferred tax is recognised on fiming differences, being the differences between the faxable income and e accounbng
income that originate in one year and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent years. Delerred lax is measirad
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacled or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Defarred tax liabilines are
recognised for all iming differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of dems other than unabsorbed
repreciation and camy fosward losses only 1o the extent thal reasonable certainty exists thal sufficient future taxable mcome
will be available against which these can be realised, However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of
tosses and ilems relating to capital losses, deferred tax asseds are recognised only if there is virtual cernanty supporbed by
convinaing evidence that there will be sufficient fulure taxable income avadable to realise the assets. Defarred fax assels and
atilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same goverming tax laws and the Company has 4
lugally enforceabile nght for such set off. Delerred tax assets are reviewed at sach balance sheel date for thew redianility

i} Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT'}
Minimum Aflarnate Tax (MAT'} credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax during the speciiic period. In the year in which MAT credit bacomes eligible to ba
recognised as an assal in accordance with the recommendations contained m guidance nade isguad by the nstilube ol
Chartared Accountants of India, the said assel is recognised by way of a credit to the statements of prefit and loss and
presentsd 5 a MAT credit entitierment,




Sindhuja Microcrodit Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
iR in Lakhs, unlass stated otherwise)

£.15 Eamings per equity share (EPS)
Basic earnings per sharg is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equily shares
auistanding during the year, Diluled earnings per share i computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after 1ax as adjusted for dividend.
interest and ather charges 1o expense or income (net of any atirnbulabie taxes) relating (o the difutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average numier of equily shares considerad for denving basic eamings per share and the welghted average number of
gty shares which couwld fane Been issusd on the comeersian of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Fofantial equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion fo equity shares would decrease the net prafil per shang
fram contmuing sedinary operations, Pobential dilutive egquity shanes are desmed bto be converted as a1 the beginning of the year,
unbess thiry have been issued al a later date. The dilufive potenlial equity shares are adjusled for the proceeds recaivable nad the
shares baen actually issued at fair value {i.e. average marke! vatue of tha outstanding shares). Dilutwve potandial equity shargs ang
dedarmined indapendently for aach year presantad. The number of equity shares and potentially dilulive equity shares are adjusted
for share splits | reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropnate.
2.16 Lease
{a) Lease amangements where the significant portion af the risks and sewards of ownership vests with the Lessor ane recognized
as operafing leases. Paymants made under oparafing leases are charged (o the Statement of Profit and Loss on a siraighl-ine
hasis over the pericd of lease.
{b) Finance leazes, which effectively transfer fo the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownershap of the
leased ibam, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased propeny and present walue of the minimum leass
paymenis at tha inception of the leasa term and disclosed a5 leased assols,

217 Cash and cagh agquivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposite with banks, Cash equivalenis are short-lerm balances (with an original
malunty of less than three months), highly liquid nvesiments that are readily comsertible inte known amounis of cash and
which are subject to insigndficant nsk of chamges in value.
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Suturiary of gignificant sccounting peliion and oiher sxplansory isforatsen for the year onded 39 Masch 20232
(Hs o s, uskead BiEled obenwise]

As al 11 March 3022 Mz 2t 31 March 2020
Mo, of shares Amnsum Mo. of sharas Aifiarsd
1 Share capial
Asthorised shaee Capital
Erjady shangh of Lage vl of 10 cach 12,000 230 100 o o GHHDLG34 0 B
tymheiencs Shares of P10 aazh 16250 000 152500 18 250000 VIS 0D
13,260,000 ¥, 1I6.00 ¥E_I00 000 3,238.00
Pamuiied. Sasle o ivisdd A pakd-io
SR N R L L 15,878,190 156742 15 670990 1547 B2
Corngubiory Corveirbiia Praleisose shaes 1625 30 18, 250 (00 1 B3SO
0,09, 1 39203 1,928, 550 3192.EF
]
Anlarce o5 U Dobied o 8 vkl 15 878, 1A 1,507 82 . 15 678 100 1887 K5
Onnstasing ot the end of he year —JETLT ITEE 1557 ip8 LEATEL
Bl The reconciliation of Compulsorily convertible prefarence shares oulstanding ai the beginning and &1 the end of the reparting year
Pamulars. A at 31 March 2028 A at 31 Warch 1021
- Ko, of shares Aumaagnd Ho. of ghases Amount
BasrCr al U beancesy of B piae 16, 230,000 1.825 00 & =
Bus of compubisty cormnible palnsencs share |refer 18,280,000 TR
i) bl LA -
Outaring o the end of the year 5,800 182500 16,258,700 igae
11l Dunifry tha yedr endecd 31 Macs 7021, 5,000 000 Compulsorty oomarinis prelsrencs shaees of face valus of T 10 sach wene issued snd alomed o Capediam Capetsl FParinen. Furd
a1 350 500 compulnnny comwerbbin prelesence shaees of face value of T 10 ssch wern ssued and sbomed ts MW Fond i K5,
cl  Deiails Uity ghires in the Compame____
Haitia al #hesaholdoer An at 31 March 03T &g &t 11 Warch D21
Humbers ¥ ol hidding it e of holding
Emquty shares
My ~orighels Humar 2 BIT.600 BTN T &5F 60D 15 B9
Carpadam Capml Farmnad Fund | T 55803 AT 13% . 3a% aua AT 1%
Wi Wikt S Dadvils 1,675,008 K a! 1,815,000 1154%
“I i il
e % af holding Humbere % ol halding
Eﬂ-ﬁﬁﬁ'm predevence shares
Cargadeom il Pardnens: Fund il 5,000,000 3077 4 000000 ¥NTTH
I Faed 1y g 10, 250000 BRI 11, 260,000 - ]
# Datails o shasvhobdings of Promatars
Faim of sharsholder &5 ai 11 Warch J2F &3 ai 11 Maseh 2621 % Changs
Humbrs % of tolal abasids Hufmlies % ol bl &hdares 2]
Hnuity shareg
L L TE AT ] & BX2 800 §E.T3% ZAGE BOO 15 84% 1.0
W Lok Senah Decvalks 1,073,000 13.57% 1,410 500 11.54% 103%
— RSO i ASELE00 FEAL L]

al

L]

Fighis, prelanimiees and restrictions Mtachied 1 equity shams

The Company Nas anly one dess of eguly shaies Baving th face value o F 0 pof shaing, Each mosltai of ggaly shans & eabDed 1 S5 w208 Bl 20ais |0 the essnl of bgisdason of
the Crimgany e holkir ol aquily shares will b snited 10 /B0Ee /BManEn asssls of the Company, atier @sinbubon of o eeferenind gmounts The datntubon sl e m Eoicbon
1o s Fusfrile ool idpiely e Bkl by Ll ihireholdain

Thie Conmpmny dectaes and pays dewsdend in Indsan Rugess. The dividend proposed by the Boend of Duecton § any, is sSwect o e approval of aharshaldecs in Ha afiing Sninal
Genersl Wewng

Bighin, preforences and regtriciions stiached io prelorence shares

This hiirbierp ol B Prafaience shires shall ba entibied % afled mesbags of gl Sharshoidery of Pa Compaty Snd will Ba aniiliad ¥ duch wising nighls on 2a A5 F Cormednied e
Lipeen gorremnmenn of ey peefisrence arores o Egeily Shams, such Equity Shares shall ank pas passy & ol eespecty weih the then sxssng Equity Shaime of te Compacy

Termn of compuisory converlible prefemonce shares

[ By wrced 31 Macch 30271, 1.12.50 000 and 3000.000 numést ol Compulicnly Sommitibie Prefersnce Shades ("CCPET) ol lech vales | 10 [ Saiid B7) eaoh weie alomed
to WL Fond 0 KE and Corpediem Capitsl Partrers Fued I esspactively af @ price of | 40000 {inchusing premium of § 30000 per aiare, Thess CCPE ahall Be corvertsd ins agusy
ANEIEE 0N OF DElDE fefEhEtn FEAM BN EEVEn Mot feoem e 8 ol SReimenl of "sanet BT ml @ CORWErsD® pHce Dased upon [oE-money mutple I be datmmned by the Boan of
Divictans bk B Snascal pecl ol 1= Company,

Sanon i CoAMpaTy o Baeen in eesieanos Tor leas then free yaes, no shares have besn alomed, as fully pasd up pursuan B conlrocis) sdhoul paymend be 5 d i cpth or By
ey &l L Bomen shares and no shines hie been boeght Back by the ompany during the precsdng previcus yeans bom the dilo of Incsrpaniben




Sindhuja Microcredit Private
Summary of significant aocounting

Lirmited

{H5 n Lakng, uniess siand olherwise)

Resarves and surplus

Securities premium
Bagancs al the beginming of fha year
Add: lssus of aquity Shares

lssia of compulsory converiible prefersncs GRaS
Less. Share issus expanses
Balance al the end of the year (A}
Roserve lund [ws 25(1C) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834 (REM]
Batarce al tha beginning of the yaar
A Ampur wansfermed durng the year *
Balance at the end of the year (B}
Surplus! (deficit] in the statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as al the beginning of the year
Aod: Profa for the year
Less Anount transferred during the year to Reserve fund (us 45{1C) of REI
Al 18534 ¢
Balance as at the end of the year 1)
Share oplicns culstanding account
Balanca as al the beginning of the year
Add Amouri transdesred durng the year
Less: Amount réversed gunng e yisar
Share Opticns Outstanding Account (o)

Tadsl Reserves and surplus (A+8+C+0)

policios and ather explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

s At Az at

__ 3iMarch2022 31 March 2021
B,B0572 214181
i 4 57500

N {210.75)
6,H08.T2 B,ED5.72
BT EE 43,55
#3.70 &4 41
151.78 07.86
TA.45 {9819
31894 22205
E3.80 a4 41
3134 69 T9.45
1.6G 5 56

= 147

1.6 1.58
7.293.75 alg'.u.'a:

In tereng of Secticn 45-8C of the RBI Act, 1634, the Compary is required 1o transfer 8t least 0% of ila ned paafils 1o 8
reasrve before ary dividend & caciared, As al ihe yearend, the Company has transfarrag an amownt of ¥ 8378 lacs

{previous year T 4447 Lacs}

Lorg-ierm bonrowings

Lrsgcuifed
{A) Debantures
M corverhible debentunes™

Less Curent maturities of long-ierm bormowings

Secured
{A) Debentures

Mon conwerlibhs debenturgs”
Less: Currenl maluries of long-bert borowings

18] Termn Loans
Fram inancial inshbulions®
Less: Currani matunties of lang-term borrowings

Froem banks*
Less Cumend maturities of long=leim barmrwengs

* far terms and comditions refer note 30

Ortthar bong berm liabilities
Lease soualisafion resane

*Refer Mote Mo 33

135000 1.250.00
1.350.00 g
- 1.350.00
7.00:0.00 200000
2.000.00 -
5.000.00 2, 00000
B.5aF 40 14 47813
6,672.35 10,214 05
2,885.12 4265 08
16.884.29 1,000.00
TR42.583 3420
 BEALTE GES T
1!!?II.HB = B,300.T%
219
FRE]




Sindhvuja Microcrodit Private Limited
summary of significant actounting policies and other explanatory informaticn for the year ended 31 March 2022
(P in Lakhs, uniless slaled athance)

A @l Az at
31 March 2022 1 March 2021
T Longterm provigions
Pravision lor employes banelils
Prowision fof graquily (refer note 26) 232 17.32
Pravison Tor compensaled absenons 12,80 1310
Brovision on loan portfalio (ewnod]
Canfingant provision against siendard assets 3430 _AT5%
83,12 77.97
8  Short-term bormawings
Unsecured
{4) Curremt maturites of debentures
Mon convertible dabentures® 1.380,00 ¥
(&) Gasrani maturities of debenbures
Hon corvertinle debanturas® Z.000.00 -
18] Current matenities Term Loans
Fram fnancial estitutions 667235 10.214.0%5
From banks® 7842 53 31428
14,514 88 10,528,324
17,064 B8 10,528,349
= far termes and conditions refer node 30
g9 Trada Payable
(A} Tatal cubsandeng dues of Micro enbarpases .
and small enterprsas
(B T guistanding dues of creditors oihar 18.05 16.67
than micro enerprees and smal enleqmrsas” )
1008 109,87
“lor ageing refer Mobe Mo 42
0 Other current liabilities
imeres| soeruad bul not dwa an Bormowings 108,46 5.
Payable an managed pomlioka 515.80 19681
Statutory dues 7785 60,08
Emgloyes malated payable 145,37 BAE1
Othar payable® 23487 50.28
:ﬂﬂg _—l&
*Other payable includes maprly Insurance payabie
11 Shortom provisions
Provisien for employes benefits
Proveigian dor grafuity {refer nobe 28] 1.18 004
Prowisian Tor compensalisd absences 4 54 205
Erovision on |oan ponfolio jownad and managed)
Canfingent pravision agains! standard assels e 1375
Pravision on nan pesiming assats (own portfalio) 38218 2.7
Prosssion on nom perlorming assets (managed partioko) 206,64 B7. 14
Iff' \ E A




BIEL) T4 3 (LA T [ Bl or RLOE |07 Ua0ER 1L W 4F osutiig|
GEBLE HEL B 2.0 LEPE 15'6% ZTOZ YIE L Ve S aUE Y
T 1N

10°F0) FE &0 B L T “OEEE (Y] LEOE YRR LE 1T S aSUERE
(650 SE0 = : VE O jeak o) BUUNp BUSLISNIDE SUDTINEA0
: - = - Gamah JED o usseadag

IFTF 20°6E i 55 0 8hs Fi JEEA F o U sding
EitH £Er L B0z L6 0% LE0T YW L VR SR a2uTeg
3 - = - C JEad ) BN p SPoaEenipe FuchInpa
LLiE TN E L] Ll Be'G (=4 FERA B4 40} LOREaEAD
908 L& 4R2 ¥Z0 FFE 5B T D20z iy | 18 BR BSLR g
ua{R0Idap pagELENIaY

ITTE FEFLT! I ITE Vo BF FEEE EZ0Z YAEW LT 18 5T soueiel
i " 550 = = 2o 0 il syl Bupnp spomansnipe e sodeig
9966 0 54 FEd ] VS0 = BT EZ potiad st Buung SUCEIEDY
B R TE ik I3 15 BF B 5% LZOT WI4E LE I8 5% aourjed
T B : T - . iak ag Buunp susuanipesesode)
[} G6 LI ire sia ol i 6L 6 18k ) Bump Uy
L0°EEL L5008 B¥ L WE (531 G997 OZOT My | 18 B8 soumeg
N300 SE0AD

H%ﬂ m—:ﬂﬂ. L] E.._._-
L pue smndwon (13203 e s i puE du LN smnanieg

i Dlel  Th

[aS D PRIRTS FSOjUN "SeE] L Sl

TEOF MR LE PoPAUS JE ST M) UO{IRLELIG UL Asoqruepdon Jao pue sapod Bununoaze eajjubis o Lmwwang

pENLAT] DIEALLY BIPAISAISIY RINUpUIS



Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Rs in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets

Fatbeuane Computer software Total
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2020 343 3.43
Additions during the year 0.55 0.55
Disposalsfadjustments during the vear : =
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3.98 3.98
Addibans during the pariod 1.26 1.26
Disposals/adjustments during the year . -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5.24 5.24
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2020 0,41 041
Amortisation for the year 1.21 1.21
Deductions/adjustments during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1.62 1.62 |
Amorlisation for the year 1.56 1.56
Deductons/adjustments during the year - -
EBalance as at 31 March 2022 3.18 3.18
Het block
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2.08 2.08
Balance as at 31 March 2021 236 2,36 |




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Hs in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

14

15

17

16.4

182

Doferred tax assels [not)
Deferred tax assels

Disallowance under secton 40A(7) of the ncome tax Act. 1561
Disallowance under section 438 of the Income tax Act, 1961
Prowisian for loan portfalio

Prefiminary expangeas

Deferred tax liability
Depraciation and amontisation expenses

Lang-term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considerad good, unless otherwise stated)
Portfalic loans

{085 loan assels

Less: Managed assels

Mot loan assels (# same as note 14)

Other loans and advances
Secunty deposits *

Frapaid exponsss

Advanci againgl borrewings
Other advanoes

Other non-cumrent assels

Dieposits with remaining matusity for more than12 months #
Imfarest accrued on fixed deposils
Interest accrued on secunly deposils

Prepaid ancillary Dormowing cost

T18.13
121

13443

BE4.BT

&g at As at
41 March 2022 1 March 2021
7.64 4.37
@.05 404
137.35 B4 4%
0.37 037
{1.37) (0.20)
160.08 83.07
1390272 534103
1,543 26 58591
12,359 .46 4. 73512
20.55 248,07
26,81 9283
- 15,00
T3 BE13

¢ (Includes deposits aggregating fo ¥ 3.09 lacs (31 March 2021: ¥ 405 kacs) placed as cash collateral to avall berm kaans from
financial insttutsons and as cash coliaterad in connection with  ransactions)

# Represents deposits amounting to 712.50 tacs (previous year: T 245 lacs) mamtaned a5 collateral aganst term loans avalled,

Trade Receivables

secuned, consdenad good
Unsacured. considered good
Drowsbitful

Allewances for bad and doubtiul debls
Debis due by directors or other officer of the company

*for ageing refer Note No 43
Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash egqubralents
Balances with banks

- in current accountis

in deposd aceoun|s hanang arigmal mafunty of less than 3 months #
Cash on hand

Qiher bank balances
Creposits with remaining maturity for more than 3 menths but less than 12

51.18 SE38
51.16 58,38 _

1.280.07 21218

4.583.00 G,267 00

136.749 7296

5 B01 86 6552 15

5.801.86




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting polickes and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Fs in Lakhs, unless siated othermse)

18

Z0

Short-term loans and advances
{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Portfolio lcans
(Gross loan assets
Less: Managed assels
Met loan assets #

Oither loans and advances
Sdvances recoverable in cash or in kind

Securily deposile *

Advance tax (including tax deducted at source and net off provisicn for

taxation)
Prepaid expenses

Advancs against Dorrowings
Balances with stalutory authosties

Other advancas™®

Other current assets

Interest accrued bl not due on loans
Interest accreed on figed deposits
Interest acenped on security deposits
Prapaid ancillary bormeowsing o5l

Ciiner current asseis

A= at A8 at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2947941 19,857 .54
316983 324375
28 300 58 1661375
23 337
51.47 252 45
IR24 1812
GA 44 54 .04
BGAT M2.83
42 54 18,61
32608 a55.25
; _ram.aT

# Loan portfolio amounting to ¥ 29,620.28 lacs (previous year ¥ 14,106.66 lacs) is hypothecaled with banks and financial
insfitutions against amounts borrowed from the said banks and financial institutions

* (Includes deposils aggregating o T 43,48 lacs (31 March 2021: ¥ 252 .45 lacs) placed as cash codlateral o avad lamm loans from
finsancial Insbiutions and as cash collateral in conneclion with transaclions)

Other Advances includes majorliy Recoverable from managed postfolio

23278 152.84
423 41.60
a3.E4 5

147.12 9215

9071 56.71

4T8.65 343.30




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatony infermatian for the ended 11 March
(Rs in Lakhs unkess stsded olbanwise) v i areh 022

21

22

Ravenue from operations

Int@resd incomea on lcan partfolio
Seryicing fees

Frocessing fee an loan portfalio
interest on fooed depasis

Crifsr beamne
Miscelanaous income

Emiployes benefits expense

Salares and wagas

Gratuay Exponses

Contribution fo provident and other funds

Expenge on Emaloves Siack Cplion Schema (rafar note 293
Saall wellare expense

Findnce cosis

IPlErmg] Expss sy
Ciher bamowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Diepreciafon on propety, plant and equipment
Amorisabon of mtangible assels

(ther expenses

Fant {reder node 33§

Lagal @nd professicnal changas

Rates and taxes

Trarepiling and convayance expances
Directars siting feas
Painting and slalioaery

Coenmisnication expensas

Adveiaament arsd recruitman aupenses
Fower and lael

Coembrgent provison aganst skandard assats
Linsmalisad lnans wimen O

Provision for non-parfarmng leans
Uincgalised managed loans wnbien Off
Softwans sxpensas

Audibars ramunasation (refer nale 59
Repars and mainlenancs

Bark changes

Mecallanoows cxpenses

Far the year ended 31 For the year anded 31
March 2022 March 201
520088 3,491 .42
A6T BH 27200
41220 184019
2683 13 19009

524387 413783
11.53 5,52

.53 552
1,715 58 115601
13.14 B30
132.68 2307

: {3.67)
14,84 7.36
‘Ill.'l"ﬂ.lﬁ 126186
2,534 41 1.0900.18
134 97 T03 &4

Elﬁﬂ. 2.
43 &6 3313
1.56 121
4502 34,34
 EE——

TH5.98 qrar
56.55 078
11.61 14 43
41,41 1476

545 4 50
w\AT 1595
30,53 2177
14.37 237
15,38 Ta8

{18.07) (B2 Té)

4060, 00 -

209,92 0943
2287 -
B3.07 5875
12.70 11.849
46, 66 2718

957 FE- T

2075

28.60
1,202.95




Sindihuja Microcredit Privale Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other sxplanatory information for the year endod 31 March 2022
(RS in Lakhs, unkess siabed clharwizs)

ar

@)

]l

£l

Retated party disclosures

Mames of related parlies and description of redationship

Felationehip

Mame of the related party

Key Managemenl Personnel (KMP) Abhisheka Kumar
Makit Singh Didyala
Entities wikich are able (o axercise control or have significant nflusnce Carpadiem Capitad Paringrs Fund |
Carpadiemn Capitad Partnars Fund 11
MM Fursd IV ES
Transaclions with related pariies Year ended Yerar ended
34 March 2022 3 March 2021
Issur of compaslsory convertible prefarence shares
MBI Fursd IV KS - 4 500000
Gapediem Gap#al Partners Fund 1l . 2000.00
Reimbursement of expenses received
Abhisheka Kumnar 3.684 AL
bakd Singh Didyala 0.BD D33
Remunaration
AbtRisheka Kumar 50.73 &0L385
Malka Sirgh Didyala 50,73 &0 35
Contrbulion towards Providend fund aasd other Funds
Abninheka Kumar 2.0 208
Malkt Singh Didyala 270 208
Termination benelils
Abnizheka Kumar 204 0.8z
kaka Singh Didyala 202 oB3
Ag al Azl
Year-end balances 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Abhishaka Kumar 403 1.2
halkn Sngh Didyala 403 200

¥ %



Sindhuja Microcradit Privato Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and oihey eaplanatory information
(RE v Lokhd, yniess shated offsrmtis)

28 Emgilogii beneli plan

) The present value of obigation i determined based on achuanial visation using the Projecied Lint Cresit Mathod, which recognizes each
panad of service s ghang rise jo sddtionsl und of employes banefi anlifement and MESWES BACH NI SBQArAtelY 10 Bukd up e fral

T folizrang Lables sel out the sintus of the gratuty plan as requined undar AS 15 [Revised] *Employes Benefis™.

Pamiculirs For the yeaf ended  For the yoear andad
1 Manch 2022 M March 2031

| SHlaloment of Profil and Losa
et employes beneli axpense (mcogrised in omployes cost)

Curend gmnvice cosl 1247 B.80

1.0 083

1}

114 ﬁ
30,50 4736
.50 1756
17.35 187

.08 053
1217 BED
i 12) 908
24 50 1733

i Ecomomic assumplicns
The prrcpal assumpltions e the dacound e and salary growin rate. The dscount mie i ganemlly based upon e markel vieid
vaitabin on the Govemmen bonds ol ) regdriing dains with 2 term [hal masches that of te kabfites and the galnry grawth coe akes
accounl of mflidion, genionty, promotion e o relovin TDshors o long-herm b

Do i For the year ended  For the year
| - I Maach 2022 31 Marel 201
Desoourt rats B G0 8 30%
Fulums aalary increnses 10 OO A0, 00%
E al 3.3 34 45
ie)  Demegraphic sssumpticns
For the year ended  For the year ¢
e
Demoripti 3 Maseh 2022 M mn:;ﬂ
Fesremnant Aga [
Moraday lnbe RALNI (2012-14) HALM (3017-14
Whindrewal rale
Al saEk 2% 2%

By Defined Contribution Plan

The contributon mads io WANDUS Fnpory undp o BCaghdid 8 Epands gnd Pcluded m Nots 2 "Employoe boenedls asponse unde
“Contniwbon Sa provden] and ot fundi” n e Statemant of Profl snd Loss. Tha total contribution made iowards proadent fund ond
olhar by Tor paar ended 31 Manch 20227 = § 13260 Iscs (Presous vaar 7 93 07 1p2s)




Semdhuja Micrecreds Private Limibed
Summary of sigaificant accounting policles and siber sxplanatory information
{RE i Lakhs onless sieied dfharwiss)

L}

Share-baged employes remunoratian
Emplees Stock Option Plan - ESOP 2019

Pursimni 10 0 resciuben passed By e mambars Folding equity shares vits Extra Ovelinary Gananl Meeting bebd on 30 Ociober 2018, the
ompany ntroduced the Empicess Slock Opson Plan TES0PT) pursuant o i provieons of Secton 62 ard oihed spohcabls provisonm
it arwy. OF the Companias At 13 fpad wih Ihe Guidancs nole on Accounting for Shars-based paymiets Lindar (hi gohisa R s
Feocd ol aplon, which can B2 graniisd (o sigble employees of the Company, nol sxcesding 435 087 (Four Laks teenty-fres Bamand and
wighty-twen) oquily sFaded (Number of ES0P Options in aggroegale), Dureg the ponr ended 31 March 2023, the Compary hads grantad
90, 000 number of cptons (Previees vaar 1,460554] 1o the sigibie empioyees of tha Gompany,

Theste shall be & miremum pencd of cre yaar babween ihe gracs of Oplions s vesting of option or as decided by the Board, Subsect 1o
Particpant’s continuing the employmant with ths Company, s the Ootiens geanied 1o an empkopes shall vesl in him or her @ undor

25 % of fotal oplord gracdd 19 &0 Smpicren Rl vead ad the eupay of ore yoar from The date of grant of cptions.

21 i ol Cosal Qpieores Qranoed B0 an empadyes Bl vt al e sxpiry of Bwa years indm e date of grant of ophions

25 % of rotal optons granded to an empicpen shall vest Bl e sxpiny of Bres years from The dede of grant of cptions

35 e of lotal ppiond granted ko an emplopes shall vest oi the expliy of Boor years fom Thi date of grant of Solons provides Bl Thi grani
fdale may b tillpract for dieren] calegony of amployeas.

Emgployes slock oplicn schames:
Dretails. ol grant and exe'cse of Such SPlong ong &5 follcws:

SMPL ESOF- 3049
13917 Optione 140,934 Options. BO000 Optione
a0 10-Naiw- M)y P Now-21
a2.91T 140,234 840, 000
k] 4% 28
HIL HIL HIL
MIL HIL HIL
A0-Bap-19 10-Moy- 20 25-Jun-21
S-Ma-20 T0-Hay-21 5-Haw-22
5 Nowerebage 2020 48 10 Hgwirnbes 20001 25 Mowinist 2022
& Moy 2074 1010 Ngssmbgr 10 248 HowsTioa:
2035 2036
1383 Al 383
Ayl 4 yuary 4 yaan
EEE- | a0 all
- B17 8.47
7% T T1% ¥
The detadls of ESDP 2040 arn summariesd balow:
Pariislars As ol March 11, 32 As at Manch 31, 2021
Humbar of Wghbed average Humber ol Weighbed aversg]
Dipions RErCise price Oplbons. GREFGIEE price
Cwnsimnding ecaons M e Degiing of Tw yes! n T 0.60 EEE L]
Granled dunng the year 050 IXE3 141 &0 100
Farlndad dunng |he veam (el -] - el oo 39 64
Extrgigas dunng Ty T " "
Murhiyr of shams ahsng as a resull of eerciss ol ! 4 >
L Er
Earaet g 1 e - .
Chiistandreg Setons &) ihe end of e year ars 3 Td 271 3T 6E
|Ergrrssakin a1 this aned of Ihe yea = T = AT 55 |
Foa the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2032 31 March 2021
. 357
Exgsmisa ansang nom ghane end slock apton plang ] [2.9T)
Claung hvancs of babedy for 2xah §loch Afedpoalsn (ln 0 -
E o incroass i far value ol = =
Principal agsumgition

T waiss . of Banagfr for the pugssse of catuladng the amoun of tae of &5 Juch olhie purpcas AR Mdy B recesary alnd B e for
miarkn wike ol ihi shates i he Company i ceedmeres Iy & Crlegony | Menchan Banked regiiensd with ine Secarfing and Exchangr
Boarnd of India. on e Seacili dais.

Cvecgunied cesh flow method s used 1o caiculste the e mardst vaive of the Employes sock oplon pian of the Company.




Siredlnds Mecrocredd Private Laneesd
Surnrmary o AIECARE 3CCOUNSENY polces and GIher e pLanaiory Tlarmation
(B oty LBk, urskass bR CBtwraa]

1 Bonuwengs
& Secersd twrm boan [ TL) frows Barks. 8
Amourt nuts lenileg 4% Ferepur | fasldrarading aa lemeies

P —— 31 March 3833 3% March 2021 - TR

Currer i e B Cusresl = Ren-cumed
TLE 347 ) MHITE B ] BAS T K3EQR M mpaehdy neadmants
L3 500 00 S0 0G - - 138, 3 mrawhiy nelaleenis
L] s 5 bk ] - : 13 5 18 oy rlalesens
(LS Ol OO 8 254 00 x - O 35w M0 rmondery el i
e 250 85 12540 . - 12 75% 20 monibly alslimes
ny 12500 104 18 - . 17 THS 20 iy LT
s g ET L] . - 10850 26 monthly avsniireds
Tl B A3 e T - " M 2 mgninly aesiirants
T 1,000 a0 Gk firli - . 10 :35% T4 monthiy milakTens
e il i T80 0 . . 13900, 77 monthiy siiliieanis
L 5 ) 036 48 1 [ B 39% 3 ey natslnens
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Simdhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Swmamary of significant scccunting polickes and other cxplanatory information
{Fis in Lakhs, uniess slated otherwiss)

For the yoar andod Far the yoar

ended

31 March 2021

A} Micre Finance Institution Grading R MF1 2 T &
(oh Long Term Bank Laans WD BEE" 1 “IMC BBR-"/
POSITIVE STABLE

3¥  Sepmen reparting

Business Segment

The Comparny operaled in a Singhe reportable segment Le, micro Snancing activiies exciusively 10 rural women Iving Bakow paverty lne
idantifind and organized in Joind Lisbilty Group (JLG) which have similsr nisk and retums. Accordingly, there is no reportabile segrsent 1o
i dsclosed as reqguired by Accouniing Slandand 17 “Sagment Reporing

Geagraphical Sogmaent
Thie signilicant operations of the Comnary are wathin india and therefore there @ ne deparale geographical segment which needs 1o be
disciosed as mequined by Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Repomang”.

33 Dascoswre in respecl Compary's. epbraling lase armongements antened Mo by 1he company. Lndes Aceouning Siandard (AS5-18)
“L sases” Mavsd by the instiluie of Chastered Accourtants of india.

The year-wise breakup ol ki minmum ase payments in respect of leased premises is as under:

For the year ended For the year ended|
Promisss taken on loasa 31 March 20Z2 1 March 2021
Ciperaling ledss payThents recognized during the year 133,78 B2ar
Mol Laber than 1 year :
Later fhan 1 year bul nol Wier than 5 years .19
Latesr (hn § yars

3 Earning per equity shane
In accordancn with Aocounting Stondard 20, Earmings Per Shara a5 notified by the Comparses (Accounting Stardards) Rules, 2084

For the yoar ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2032 31 March 2021
Ml prohl @lar 15 avadable for appropeiaben (F) 318 94
Vaighted awerage number of equity shanes = Basic EPS 156.78

Weighted Bwerage number of equity shanes — Dikited EFS 23210
Basic gamings per share (¥) 203
Ciluted =a 8 chare () 1.37

35  Capital commitrmend

Estrnated armpunt of contract remaiing to be execuied on capilal @ooourd and not provided bor iz & NI (Provious yedr Kl




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited

Summary af significant accounting policies and other explanatory infermation

(P4 in Lakhs, uninss stabed olhanwise)

3 Provision fer sutstanding loan posifalio

Provision for outstanding own losn portlalic

A= at 51 March 2022 A= al 31 March 2021
Aamel Classification Losa o lon  Losn portolio Provisian
[Standard porifolin 38,104 62 43,23 20,848 B0 E1.30
Sub Standard porifalie 185 08 46 30 405 01 120.73
Dgutaful portfshc 358.36 33588 111.04 111,04
Loss portioho L E E o
Tatal umﬁni. 425 42 21 358 BT 223.07
Pravigion for outstanding managed loan portfalip
Assot Classification Az at 31 March 2022 As a1 31 March 2021
Loan parifalio Pravision Loan porifalio Provigion
Standard porifola 4 466 .55 . 3,661.30 -
Suh-standard ﬂnn..._._urn 24 0B B.37 B4 .64 Z8.35
Caoubitul poetfolba 247 19827 7147 58.78
Loss parifalio : : . u
ial 4, 713,11 206 64 389,70 14
The mawemant in provision during the year 5 expladned below:
O Portfalie
For tha year ended 31 March 2022 Far tha year gnded 31 Murch 2021
Particulars Saib-standard & Sub-standard &
Standard portfolia Doubtful | Total Standard partiolio Doubthsl falic Total
51.30 23177 28307 144 08 mrm.._1 144,33
(8.0 15042 [EF] BT 27650 143.74
43,23 mz4 42542 3130 _ Eu._..__.ﬂ 233,07
For the yaar gndad 31 March 2022 For the year cnded 31 March 2021
Sub-standard & Sub-standard &
Standard portfolia | ool nortfolio Total  |Standard portfolio | no i ponvalia Total
a7 14 87 14 421 421 |
11650 1195 8283 83
206 64 206.654 87,14 87,14

37




Sindhuja Microcredit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(s in Lakhs, wnless staled olhersiso)

8

i

Contingent Liabdlithes

The Company has emefed Mo an arrangament lowards rendeving of financial services and accordingly has ghven
gunrEntess iowands lsans referred by the Company aggregating to T 1404.23 tacs (previous vear: ¥ 125115 kacs), The
Quaranies & pravised by way of corporate guaranies and cash collabaral

Aupdilons remuneration (eeckiding Goods and Sevice Tax)

] For year andad Far year ended
sk 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Paymomt 1o Audior
- BS 8n auditor 11.50 11,00
- loe alhar sarvices 063 -
-far reimbursement of eupances 0587 0.54

Total 12.70 19.99 |

Amounts payable o Micro and Small enterprises

The distlasure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro ard Small enlerprises as at 31 March 2022 has been mada in
e finamcasl statements based on information received and available with ihe Company. Fusther in the view of tha
mnagemand, the impact of inberest, If any, thel may be payabla in accardance with the provisions of the Micro. Small and
Medium Entermprises Developmant Act, 2006 & nol expecied o be maberial. The Company has nol mecelved any caim for
inderest from any supplier undar the sasd Act

For the yeas endod  For the year ended
Particulirs 3 March X022 3 March EI:I!J

The principal amoaint and the inlevest des therson remaining unpaid o any =
suppler as at the end of each accounling year,

The amound of interest paid By the buyer in tems of sechion 16 of B Micn, -
Srnall and Medium Emerprigses Devsiopmant Act. 2006 (27 of 2006), akong wh

the amauat of the poymend made io the suppier beyond the appointed day

BUring each Jecounting year,

The amaunt of interest due and payable for the parod of delay in making - -
paymanl fwhich has beaen paid but beyond tha appoinied day during the year)

bl wilhout adding 1he inteiest specifed under the Mo, Small and Medium

Enterpresas Developenan Act 2006,

The smount of interes! acersed and remairing unpaid at the end of the vear, =
and

The amound of furber interest remaining dus and payable even in tha - =
swooseding years, until such date whan the interest duas abowe afe achualy

pid 1o Ehe small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of 8 deductble

eapendilure under seckan 23 of the Mom, Smal and Madium Emerprees

Devmlopmaend Act, 2006




Sindhujs Microcredit Privaie Limted

Summary ol sigaificant accounting pobcles and other explanatary infarmation

|F% e Lakng unless slabed Sinerivise)

&1

113

l}

Adgditional disciosures as required by the Reserve Bank of India
Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR

For the year Fos the yaar
Particulsrs gnded 31 March ended 31 March
02z 201
CRAR S 4. 50% 4273
CRAR- Toar | Capital (%) 2TI% £1.77%
CRAR- Teer Il Capial (%) 0.72% 0.85%
The Company has no direct exposure o roal ostate sactor
For the year Far the year

Particulars anced 31 March ended 31 March

_20Z2 i - B
Besidenkial
Lending fully secured by maripages on resdantial prapeity thad is of will
e actupied by e bormovwer or thal s rented
Maturity pattomn of cerlain items of assets and liabilities:
As at 31 March 2022 [A&mount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars Oiver 1 moenth te| Over 2 months | Over Imanths | Over & months | Over 1 year 103 | Over 3 years o
s 1-7 days B-14 days 15 ta 30 Days 2 months i ' 8 wonths o 1 year i 5 yoars Over 5 yoars
Borrowings 21617 154 54 TR A 1,224 90 1187 55 422199 10,082 65 16.776.69 -
Advances 0041 81 66 1.212.00 2,457 51 2308 73 6.610.10 11,859.17 12,359 46
N ns < - . * : - .
As at 11 March 2021 (Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars : Gwer 1 manth 1o |Over 2months |Over 3 months |Ovor & months  |[Over 1 yearte 3 [Over 3yearsto |

| {Mar-3021} 1= 7 dirs 1A S 15 to 30 2 months o 3 months 1o & mondhs to 1 year yoars § yoars v
Boarpswings 781.34 B1.14 559,16 1,087 48 032 94 2.7 .81 & 85447 8300.79 - -
AdvanGES 20542 I A BE8.05 1,458 18 532 28 444172 711156 478813 =
Inseslmaris - - - . : i P =




Sindbiujs Microcrodil Private Limiled

Summary of significant accouming policies and ather axplanatory information
{Fs in Lakhs, unless siased ofhenwise)

a1

feh

L]

Wi

Wi}

Wil

Additionsl disclosures 83 required by the Reserve Bank of bndia

Proviskons and contingency

& “Fox the yoar onded  For the year anded|
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provigion iowards MPA (pvmed aasals) 15043 Z26.50

Prosision iowands MPA (managed assets) 118,50 283

Provisson made Iowaeds Income lax 15450 i28.97

Proviseon for Slandard fssels (a7 A2 78

Ciraw down from Resorses
There has bean no drae down Tram reserves during the yesr ended 31 Manch 2022 (previcus yeas; M),

Cgnesniration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Four the year ended  For the year endaed
Particulars 3 March 2022 31 March 2029
Concaditration of Advances
Total advances 1o twerly 1angos] badriowers 1000 2.00
Felef Edvances 1o wenby [arpes] Domoeers 10 tial advancas 0.03% 0.04%
Coneantration of Exposuros
Total exposura bo teenly lpes] bormowertlousiomess 1000 800
%ol exposure to bwerdy largest borrowersicustomarns 1o bolal exposure 0.03% 0.04%
Concontration of HPAs
Jehal gxposuie 1o 1ap fow NPA accoaints 1,50 1,78
Soctor wise Non-Porforming Assets (HPA)

Far the yaar andoed For the wuar anded
Partculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2021
Agicudlure & alied achvilies &54. 50 476 56
MSME a3 44 4529
Corposate borrowers :
Serdices 13.74 1287
Trade 2273 53|
Unsecuned personal loans - .
ALnD loans -
CHbir Eain - -

SE4.41 520.08

Movement in Mon-Perorming Assel (NPA]

Far b year endad  Far the yaar and

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
1) Mot NFA b0 rl GdvERoES pEOaNLa]s 04T % 1.35%
i} Mavemant of MP&s (Gross)
a] Cpssning Dalance S20.06 695
b Addion during the year 444 35 51316
Ci Rsduchion dusing the year 40000 005
i) Closing badance 5441 520 06
] Movamant of Mal NPAL
m1 Opssning balancs Z8B 3D 165
B) ks guring (he yaar ? 286 61
&) Heduchon dusing the yaar 106.08 :
i) Closerg badance 182 2 280.30
i) Mevement af Prowmsions for MPAS {eacheding standand assets)
a) Cipening balance ) 527
bl Addtion during The year 8542 s i)
ch Wrie offferile back of excess prowmsions 400.00 005
5218 P N




Sindhiuga Micrecredit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information
{F5 in Lakhs, uniess stated alhenmise)

i} Disclosure with respect to customer complaints

5. Moo Ruwmiber of i
For the year anded  For tho year endod
31 March 20232 31 March 2021

i Mo al camplanls pending ai the beginmeng of B year 10 -
] Mo af complaints recened dunng the year 235 248
i Mo of complamis rediessed durng Ehe year 517 234
e Ha of sprqlaints pending at the end of ke year il ]

% Detals of Single Borrowor Limit {3GL) { Group Barrower Limit (GBL} exceedod by tho NEFC:
fha Company has rol exceeced e piudenial exposure BmiEs durng he Srancial year ended 31 March 2022 and 37 March 2021

W) FRegistralion obtaingd from other financial sector regulators

&r. Ho. Regulator Registration No. el
1 Ministry of Corporate Allairs |UBERGOUIP20Y TRTCOBE00 1-Dec-17
F] Regerqs Bank of India |12 ooaEe 11-Sep-18)

=i} Details of penalties impesed by REI and other regulaton
Mo penalties have been impoded by RBI ard cther regulalons on the Comgary duning the financial year ended 31 March 2022 (Previous
year. Hil)

Wil Unsecwred Advances 1
The Company hos rof given any unsecured advances sgainst intangible securies guch ae changs ovar the rghts, liceres, sulnory, eic
during the financial year ended 31 Manch J022. (pravious year: bil)

w]  Dwiaile of nen-porforming financial assets purchased | sald
The Cempary has nol purchasodéisold amy non-peronming Francisl assets during the fnancal year ended 37 March 2022 and 11 March
202N




Eindhuja Migrecrodit Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and sther explanatory Infermation
(M5 in Lakks, uniess slaled othenvisa)

el Additional disclosures pursesnd to Para 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financlal Company - Mon Systemicalty impostant
Hun-Deéposit taking company and Deposit taking company |Beserve Bank) Direstiors, 2016,

fs at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2031
fumaunt Al
Liabilitios side : cutstanding avirdur dumsount cutstanding cvordue
(1} Loans and advanoes availed by tha non-
banking financial compeny inchisive of
inberesi mecrued Warean Bul fol paid:

(a) Debaniees
(i hn Ealing within he meaning of public
OSadg
Secured 7,000.00 . 2,000,687 .
Unsecured 1,280.00 - 1,350.00
) Defered Credis i ~ a .
(o) Term Loars {includas sher-lnrm borowings = ”
and ndargsl poonss)
Sacured 26,350 22 s 15,553 <f =
Urseoured . F 5
] Intes-godporate kaans gnd bofrowing - 2 ; -
|#) Cemmarisal Mspar - . . N
{7} Public Depesils . 2 = 5
g1 CHher Loges i =

() Breakup of N abowe (cinstandng public
deposits mdusive of inleres] aceruod Bomeon
Dk ol pe):
{a] In the form of Unsaoured debsaniuies z - - :

1B} |ﬂ“m¢’mm Spbherunes L8,
dobssmures whone fhere is a shortfall n the
valiie of secirily

iic) Crihar public dopekits

A et 31 March

Assots side : As at 31 March 2022 2021
) Break up of Loars and Advances:
o} Spouned, gross = z
by Unsecured. gross a8 66503 21,368 87
Tatal 1566803 21,368,087

4] Biesk up of Leased Asssis
{if Laass aisnts including lense rardals under sundry deblors:
(o] finarse Bube = .
| opanng Ease . -
[} Seack an hing inciuding hine chaspes under sundry deblors:
| &) dssels on hine A E
B} repossossad assel -
[i¥] Criher loans counting bowards AFC aciwibies
{a] lpans whene assots have bean ropossessed - .
] loans ofher tham (3] above X a




(5} Araakup of irvesimsnts | lang-lerm unqualed equily)

wail

{6} Bomrenr group-wiso classfication of asseis inanosd a8 in (2) and {3)

Corment Imsestmands |

1. Chustad

i) Shanes

{a} Equsty

) Fralarence

() Debermures and Bonds
{wi} Lin#s of metual funds
(i) Govemmean] Secuntes
{w) CHbhern

2 Unguated

{i] Sharas

ta) Equity

(U} Praferards

(&) Dabenlires and Bonds
irdniE of menual Rinds
(] Governmssnt Secuiies
W) Chiers.

Long Torm invasimants :
1. Cuoted

{i} Srares

1) Eaquily

) Prefajence

(i) Dshaniuies and Bonds
i) Lindis. cf mutual furds
(v} Gervemenant Secanibies
%) Dhers

2 A rvucted

(=) Shirgs:

(ah Eqpuity

b Praferance

(%) Dubanlures and Bonds
(e} Linits of muluad hinds
i) Governmas Socuritios
wh Cthars

Additinnal digclosuros pursusn o Para 19 of Master Dinection « Mon-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically important
Hen-Deposit taking company and Deposit taking company (Resorm Bank) Directions, 2016 {continued)

Category

1, Felated parbios

&) Sutspidianes

(%) Companiss in 1he Same group
() ot rplaled parbag

2. Cahar than relabed partios
Total

Cmagery

1 Ralaled pariiag

i) Snisddianas

i) Companias in e SAme group
e} wiher refaded paries.

2. Diihar ihan relaiod panies
Taitsd

Hat of provision as st 11 March 2022

Socured Ungps urod Total
= 38,243 .52 A, 2a% 62
= 35,24362 3,243 62
Mot of provision as ag 31 March 2021
Secured Unsacured Tokal
. 21.075.80 07580
= 21,0758 F1,07T5.80




(7] Inweestor group-wise classfication of all irvestments (gument and long term) in shares and secunities (boih queded and Lrguated)

meErMﬂmmﬂ me%mﬁdlﬂlmmt
i Boak value va Book valee

Braakup or fair not of provisiona)  Breakup or falr value (net of provisions)
Category value or HAY ar A
1. Relaled parlies a * . -
2 Dihar iheen relsipd pames - - - 5
Tots - - - .

As at 31 March
18] Cnher informanon Ax a1 31 Mareh 2022 203
) Gross rcn-periaiTming Assats
[a) Fisfaked paeriins. - -
{B} Cihear than related partes G4 41 530,06

{i) Nad non-parforming asssls
(a} Relaied partes . 3
() Otivar than nelabed pactias. 182.22 ZBA.3D
(i} Aseats acquined on salistaction of debt T -

avi] Disclosures pursuant to RBI's nodification no. DORNo.BP.BCATII.04.04802010-20 dated 27 March 2020 and notification no
OO No, BP BC. T 04,048/ 2015-20 dated 33 May 2020 on COVID-19 - Regulalery Package

R vidis its notfication DOF No BP BC.ATIZ1 D4 487201920 dated 27 March 2020 had aligwed NBFCa ta grant thean morith maoralanum
for e percd Trom 01 March 2020 0 31 May 2030 e ila customers which wis subdadiianty aalonded o asddicnal three mooihs vide
nolificasion DO Ma BF BC 712104 (4872071920 dated 23 May 2000

The Company has axtanded the relaxalion 19 fE Dorrowens aonss e ans produd offerings in the following mannar:

i) Fos e loans in which custamers svails ihe moratorium, inberes! shall Bccios 31 the comirachual inbanest rile during the morslonum period
with corespanding increase in the mesidusl BN,

7 Irdresl accrual for morstonm panod 3 adjusied over The balance period witn EMI recalibration

3} Rescheduling of payment inchuding inganes? will nol qualfy as & detsull for purpose of supervisary repeding and repdting 1o Credt Burmau

qnnppmnmqmu:.utmawmwﬁummwmmmnIMM:mﬂtM?ﬂEﬂwlnmmmmuﬁmm

a1 Baich 2000, Howewer. dus b EM) mpaymants post 1 March 2020 il #vare is @ reduction of DFD days, The same will be reseed and
reporied

wil)  Disclosures pursuant to Reserve Bank of india notification no, RBI018-200220 BRI Mo P, BCLG2/21. 04048520 20-21 dated 17

Agprll 7020
s As at
Parli
Yo 31 March :u:ui 3 March 2021
Arnpund i SHAT owerdue cateqory whens the morsioium ceforment was exdendad to e 8.9
LTS
Ao whaen asset cassification barsli i axienced 234
Prowision made - -
six) |Information on met intorest mangin (qualiying assel) As at MAs at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Awverags Intesest da) 20T 1NN
Avarags pfiocie cosl of Domowng () 12731% 14 B8%
M Inforas mangin {a-b) 8.08% 7.38%
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Trade Payable Ageing schoeduls —

.._ﬂ._uu.__ . = - 18.05

As at 315t March 21
Ouwristandim ads from dus date of paymaent

Lass than 1 year 1-2 years| 23 ___._n_.E_.ﬁ_._u_.dHN_I Tetal
{i} MSME - . - - -
{E} Others 19.87 16987
{ai} Dispuied dues-MEME - §
] duss-0ahars
43
Trade Receivables rg schedule
N A% at 31st March 22
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & manths| & rmonths-1year| 1-2 years 2-3years|  More than 3 years|  Total
[i) Uncisputed Tratde Receivables-considered good 51.16 - . - 51.16
(il Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered doubtful - .
{iii} Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables-considerad doubtiul
iwabl ing schedul
Trade Rece 25 Ageing o o -
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 manths| & months-1 year| 1-2 years 2-1years| More than 3years  Total
{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered good 5838 - - : uurwm

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered doubtful
{iii) Disputed Trade Recelvables-considered good
(iv} Disputed Trade Recelvables-considered doubtful
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44  Public disclosure on lkguidity risk

1) Funding Gongentration bazed on signficant counterpasty (both deposits and barrowings)

Borrowings
As at 31 March 2022 “As at 31 March 2021 _
— % Total
_— ;?::‘?;:: Bpnont - Total Humber of Amount % Total Deposit Liabilities #
ot (i ¥) &% % Total Depasit| |0 o Significant {in ¥}
{ Counter parties
parties
[ - Mol apphcabie [l i 3038 Mal applicaiio 15.40%

## There is no significant counler parties during the year ended 31 March 2022
# Tatal Ligsilites does nol mclude the sharepolders fund

2| Top 20 lage deposits - There are no deposits taken by the Company during the year. (31 March 21: Nilj

3] Top 10 boerowings - ¥ 227 368,56 consiiiutes 54 86% of (olal bonrowings (31 March 20271 ¥ 148,211.04 constiutes T9.24% of telal bomowings)

4} Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
% of Lolal % of total
e ke " s liabilities & Amount liabilities #
(In ) {In T}

1} Tarm laan - 241.76 T2 13% 154759, 14 7B A5%
2 [Nen-convertinle debantuwres - £.350.00 22.85% 3,350.00 16.58%
£ Caah credit | Bank overdrall = =+ . i =
4) Compulsarty convwertible debeniures & = . =

# Tolal Ligpililes does nol mchide the sharghelders: fund

51 Stock ratios:
(a) Commercial papers a5 a % of iotal public funds. total Kabilities and lotal assets- Nil (31 March 2021: Nil)

|b6] Nen-comvenible debantures (original matusity of less than one year) 88 & % of total public funds, total liabdties and tolal assels - Hil {31
Masch 3021 Mil)

ic] Ciher sharttarm Eabilties, if any as a % of total public funds, total Kabilties and 1otal assets- NIl (31 Manch 20217 Nily

&) institutional set-up for lguidity risk management
The Company has constituted an assal lability commities for ovarsesmg and ensunng adherence 1o the limits $e1 by the Board a5 well as for
deciding business sirategy of the NBFC on the assets and Eabilty sides) in line wilh the NBFC's budgel and decided risk managemant
obpcivies The scope of ALM fmclion can be described as follows:
a] Laquidty risk managemant
B Managemeant of make] ks

¢l Funding and capstal planning
d) Profil planning and growth projction EROCH
@ Farecasing and anabyzing "What if scenaric’ and preparation of contingency plans ,?_"7-}:_{\%_{}
o . Fﬂ-\
o b}
=
2, 4
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impact of COVID-18 ouibreak

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating jo COVID-15 in the preparation of the Hinancis
statements including the recoverability of loans. In developing the assumptions relating to the passitle fulure uncenabes in the BCONDMG
eandibons because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these Snancial statements. used iramal and exlernal sources
of informaticn including credit reports and refated information . The Comgpary has wntien off Rs 400 lacs of loan peetfoliobased an the
informatsan available 8t this point of time. Howaver, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is & continuing process given its nature @nd duration.
Thie Company will conbnue to monitor any matenal changes o future econamic condibon.

The Company's capital and liquidity position remains sufficient and would continue 1o be the focus area for the Company, accordingly. b
Company does nol axpect & stress on K Bouidily situation in the immediabe Tulure

Foreign currency exposure and Derlvative instruments
There are na outsiending derivative confract and foreign currency Exposura 85 a1 CUrTEN? and previous year balance sheat daba

Additional Regulatery Infermation

The Campany does nol hold any title deed of Immgvable Property during tha Financial yaar 395t March 2022, All the leass Sgreamend are culy
gxzculed in favour of the company for propedies where the comgany is the lezses

The Company does not have any Banami proparty, where gny proceedng has been initiated or panding againsd the company for holding ary
Banami propérty

The Compary does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or secion 560 of
Companines Act 1556

The Company does not have any charges and satsfaction which is yet to be registared with ROC bayond the stafulary penod
The Sompany has not raded or invested in Crypto curreney of Vinual Currency during the financial year 3181 March 2032

Tha Company has nod advanced or loanid of invesied furds. in any olher persan(s) or entity(les), mnchuding foreign endites|inbarmadianas hwith
thie understanding that the Imermediary shal

dréctly ar indwectly land or swwst n other persans or antities identdied in any manner whatsogvre by or on behall of the Company [Ufimate
Beneficary) ar

provide any guarantee sacurity or the ke to o on behalf of the ulimate Beneficianios.

The Company has not received any fund from any personis] or enlity{ka], including foreign entities (Fundng Pary) wih the undarsiandng
directly or indirectly lend or invast in other persans or entiies idertified in any manner whatscevie by ¢f on behadt of the Funding Party [Litimate
Baneficiary) or

provide any. guarantee, secunty of the like 1o or on behalf of the uitimate Beneficianes.

The Company does not have any such bansaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has bean swrendersd o disciossd 43
mcoime dunng thes year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such 8s. search or survey or any olher resgvant provisions of
ihe Income Tax Act 1961

Th company s nod @ declaned willull defsulter by any bank or fnancial institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on willlull
detauller issusd by the Resene bank of india, during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

The Campany has taken borrewings fram banks and financial ingtitutions and ulised them for the specific purpese for which they were laken a5
&1 tha Balance shasl date. Unutilised funds as al 31 March 2022 ana held by the company in tho form of deposits £l the tirne The ublksation is
mady subsequently

Ina Company has borrosings from banks and financal instilufions on the basis o sacurity of current assats and the guarkeny returns fed by 1he
compary with 1he banks and financial ngiilubans ang in accordance with the books of accsunis of 1he company for the respeclive quariens
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